
         

 

 

ARBORWOOD 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

LEE COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MAY 19, 2025 
9:00 A.M. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Special District Services, Inc. 

27499 Riverview Center Boulevard, #253 
Bonita Springs, FL 33134 

www.arborwoodcdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



AGENDA 
 ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Amenity Center Community Room 
Somerset at the Plantation 
10401 Dartington Drive 

Fort Myers, Florida, 33913 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

May 19, 2025 
9:00 A.M. 

 
A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………………..Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes 

1. April 21, 2025 Regular Board Meeting Minutes…………………………………………………...Page 2 

G. Old Business 

1. Update on Road Impact Fee Credits 

H. New Business 

1. Consider Approval of Quit Claim Deed…………………………………………………………....Page 6 

2. Consider Approval of Lake Maintenance Proposals……………………………………………….Page 12 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2025-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Proposed Budget………..Page 20 

I. Administrative Matters 

1. Manager’s Report 

a. Financials……………………………………………………………………………………….Page 41 

2. Attorney’s Report 

3. Engineer Report 

4. Field Inspectors Report 

5. Preserves Compliance Updates 

J. Board Member Comments 

K. Adjourn 



 
NOTICE OF REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

The Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) of the Arborwood Community Development District 
(the “District”) will hold a Regular Board Meeting (the “Meeting”) on May 19, 2025, at 9:00 a.m. in 
the Amenity Center Community Room, Somerset at the Plantation, 10401 Dartington Drive, Fort 
Myers, Florida 33913.  The purpose of the Regular Board Meeting is for the Board to consider any 
business which may properly come before it. 

 
The Meeting is open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of 

Florida law for community development districts. The Meeting may be continued in progress 
without additional notice to a time, date, and location stated on the record.  A copy of the agenda for 
the Meeting may be obtained from the District’s website (www.arborwoodcdd.org) or by contacting 
the District Manager, Special District Services, at (941) 223-2475.  There may be occasions when 
one or more Supervisors will participate by telephone.  
 

Pursuant to provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special 
accommodations to participate in this Meeting is asked to advise the District Office at least forty-
eight (48) hours before the Meeting by contacting the District Manager at (561) 630-4922.  If you 
are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay Service at 1 (800) 955-8770, who 
can aid you in contacting the District Office. 

 
A person who decides to appeal any decision made at the Meeting with respect to any matter 

considered at the Meeting is advised that person will need a record of the proceedings and that 
accordingly, the person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made 
including the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 

 
Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice. 

 
District Manager 
Arborwood Community Development District 
 
www.arborwoodcdd.org 
 
PUBLISH:  FORT MYERS NEWS-PRESS   05/09/25 

 
 

Page 1



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

APRIL 21, 2025 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The April 21, 2025, Regular Board Meeting of the Arborwood Community Development District (the 
“District”) was called to order at 9:00 a.m. in the Amenity Center Community Room of the Somerset at the 
Plantation located at 10401 Dartington Drive, Fort Myers, Florida 33913. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published in the Fort 
Myers News-Press on  April 11, 2025, as legally required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum and it was in order to 
proceed with the meeting: 
 
Chairman Jeff Gordish Present 
Vice Chairperson Karin Hagen Absent 
Supervisor Jack Aycock Present 
Supervisor Donald Schrotenboer Present 
Supervisor Christopher Anderson  Present 

 
Staff members in attendance were: 
 
District Manager Michelle Krizen Special District Services, Inc. 
General Counsel Wes Haber (via phone) Kutak Rock, LLC 
District Engineer Ryan Lorenz JR Evans Engineering 
Field Inspector Bohdan Hirniak Special District Services, Inc. 

 
Also present was Bethany Brosious of Passarella & Associates. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  March 17, 2025, Regular Board Meeting 
 
The March 17, 2025, Regular Board Meeting minutes were presented for consideration.   

Page 2



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Schrotenboer, seconded by Mr. Gordish and passed unanimously approving 
the March 17, 2025, Regular Board Meeting minutes, as presented. 
 
G. OLD BUSINESS 
 1.  Update on School and Road Impact Fee Credits 
 
Mr. Schrotenboer reported that in order to maximize the value of the credits, the credits should be sold soon.  
Specifically, the District should consider selling the credits soon because: 1) the credits have an expiration 
date; 2) there is time involved with selling and use of the credits; and 3) the credits are restricted to districts 
54, 55, and 57 and the buyer must be actively building in one of those three districts. Mr. Schrotenboer has 
reached out to homebuilders with open projects within those districts and is still collecting information.  The 
Board chose to table this item at this time. 
 
 2.  Consider Ratification of Resolution No. 2025-01 – Approving the Donation and Conveyance 
of Certain Real Property to the City of Fort Myers 
 
It was noted that this resolution had been previously executed, as authorized by the Board at the March meeting 
but is being presented for ratification today.  
 
Resolution No. 2025-01 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2025-01 
 

A  RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE ARBORWOOD 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT APPROVING THE DONATION AND 
CONVEYANCE OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY TO THE CITY OF FT MYERS; 
AUTHORIZING THE DELIVERY OF A DEED; AND ADDRESSING SEVERABILITY, 
CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
As the County has been completing their due diligence on the property, some easement restrictions were noted. 
District staff have discussed the modifications. The process will be challenging but others have been 
successful.  District staff has prepared a letter to the City, noting the process and offering to support the City 
as needed.  
 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Gordish, seconded by Mr. Schrotenboer and passed unanimously ratifying the 
adoption of Resolution No. 2025-01, as presented 
 
 3.  Consider Ratification of Lake Bank Repairs for 2025 
 
Dragonfly is anticipated to be mobilized next week; the warranty repairs will be completed at the same time 
as the new repairs.  The property manager will be sent a list of the repair sites for additional watering. A 
completion report will be done as well as follow up checks two weeks later.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Schrotenboer, seconded by Mr. Gordish and passed unanimously ratifying the 
Lake Bank Repairs for 2025, as presented. 
 
H. NEW BUSINESS 

Page 3



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 1.  Discussion Regarding Midge Flies 
 
Midge flies can be seasonal, with some seasons more active than others. The midge flies nest in exposed lake 
banks and as the lake rises, the flies disappear.  The flies can be a nuisance but have no impact on the water 
management system or safety/health. The District maintains function.  The HOA can treat using approved 
vendors and methods if the HOA desires.  
 
 2.  Consider Lake Maintenance Proposals 
 
Three quotes have been received and all are above the current budget. A proposal was requested but not 
received from the current vendor. The proposals were reviewed. The Board requested that District staff seek 
additional proposals to present at the next meeting.  
 
 3.  Consider Resolution No. 2025-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Proposed Budget 
 
This item was tabled until the District is able to select a vendor for lake maintenance. 
 
I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 1.  Manager’s Report 
 
 a. Financials 
 
It was noted that the next meeting was scheduled for May 19, 2025. 
 
 2.  Attorney’s Report 
 
Mr. Haber had nothing to report on at his time but was available for questions. 
 
 3.  Engineer’s Report 
 
There was a proposal from MRI in the amount of $2,500 to remove concrete from the Somerset drain.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Gordish, seconded by Mr. Aycock and passed unanimously approving the MRI 
proposal to remove concrete from the Somerset drain in the amount of $2,500, as presented. 
 
The flow way will be inspected this week with a report expected at either the May or June meeting.  
 

4.  Field Inspector’s Report 
 
The year to date rainfall is 44% normal rainfall. With the greater exposure of the banks, some of the littoral 
plants, such as spike rush, are starting to die off.  When the rain returns, the plants with return.  
 
 5.  Preserves Compliance Report 
 
Passarella has completed the inspection of the onsite parcels.  Woods and Wetlands is anticipated to treat in 
May.  Passarella will coordinate.  Woods and Wetlands and Passarella are both aware of previous trespassing 
and will watch for any indications of current trespassing.  
 
The mitigation parcel will receive a second treatment in May, prior to the rainy season. 

Page 4



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 
J. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Schrotenboer will not be present but will attempt to call in to the May meeting. 
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a MOTION was made by Mr. Aycock, seconded 
by Mr. Schrotenboer and passed unanimously adjourning the Regular Board Meeting at 10:45 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
            
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice-Chair 

Page 5



1 
 

This Document Prepared by: 
Record and Return To: 
 
City of Fort Myers 
Community Development Department
1825 Hendry Street 
Fort Myers, Florida 33901 
Re:  23-45-25-00-00001.0030 and 23-45-25-00-00001.0010 
 

[Space Above This Line For Recording Data] 
 

QUIT-CLAIM DEED 

THIS QUIT-CLAIM DEED is made this 16th day of June, 2025, between 
ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, whose mailing address is 2501A 
Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410, Grantor, and CITY OF FORT MYERS, a Florida 
municipal corporation, whose post office address is 2200 Second Street, P.O. Box 2217, Fort 
Myers, FL  33902, Grantee: 

WITNESSETH, that the Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten and no/100 
Dollars ($10.00) and other good and valuable consideration to the Grantor in hand paid by the 
Grantee, the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, the Grantor does hereby remise, release 
and quit-claim unto the Grantee forever, all the right, title, interest, claim and demand which 
Grantor has in and to the following described real property located in Lee County, Florida, 
including any and all improvements and tangible personal property related thereto (the 

, to wit: 

 

This disposition of real property by donation was approved by the Arborwood 
Community Development District Board of Supervisors through Resolution No. 
2025-01 at a regularly scheduled meeting held on March 17, 2025.   

This acquisition of real property, by donation without consideration, was approved 
by the Fort Myers City Council through Resolution No. 2025-66 at a public hearing 
held on June 16, 2025, in accordance with City Code Section 2-39. 

Subject to:  covenants, conditions, restrictions, easements, limitations, and zoning 
ordinances of record, if any. 

 TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the same together with all and singular the appurtenances 
thereunto belonging or in anywise appertaining, and all the estate, right, title, interest, lien, equity 
and claim whatsoever of the Grantor, either in law or equity, for the proper use, benefit and profit 
of the said Grantee forever. 

 

(This space intentionally left blank) 

Page 6



 2 

In Witness Whereof, Grantor has hereunto set Grantor's hand and seal the day and year first 
above written. 

Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of: 
Two (2) witnesses are required for the signatory   
 
 
(Sign) ___________________________  By: _________________________________________ 

(Print) ___________________________ Name:  Jeffrey Gordish  

(Address)_________________________ Title:  Chairman, Arborwood C.D.D.  

_________________________________   

 

(Sign) ___________________________ 

(Print) ___________________________ 

(Address)_________________________ 

_________________________________ 

 

 
 
 
STATE OF: ________________ 
COUNTY OF:_______________ 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of __________, 2025, 
by ___________________________, who is _____ personally known or _____ produced 
identification (type of identification:__________).  
 
_____ online notarization 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      Notary Public 
 
      Printed Name:_________________________ 
      My Commission Expires:_________________ 
 (Notary Stamp)     
 

Page 7



 3 

 
 

Legal Description and Sketch 

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



RESOLUTION 2025-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE ARBORWOOD 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT APPROVING A PROPOSED BUDGET FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 AND SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING THEREON PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA LAW; ADDRESSING TRANSMITTAL, POSTING AND PUBLICATION 
REQUIREMENTS; ADDRESSING SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE.  

 
 WHEREAS, the District Manager has heretofore prepared and submitted to the Board of 
Supervisors (“Board”) of the Arborwood Community Development District (“District”) prior to 
June 15, 2024, a proposed budget (“Proposed Budget”) for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 
2024 and ending September 30, 2025 (“Fiscal Year 2024/2025”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board has considered the Proposed Budget and desires to set the required 
public hearing thereon.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT:  

 
1. PROPOSED BUDGET APPROVED.  The Proposed Budget prepared by the District 

Manager for Fiscal Year 2024/2025 attached hereto as Exhibit A is hereby approved as the basis 
for conducting a public hearing to adopt said Proposed Budget.  

 
2. SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING.  A public hearing on said approved Proposed Budget 

is hereby declared and set for the following date, hour and location:  
 
  DATE:    August 18, 2025 
 
  HOUR:    9:00 a.m. 
 
  LOCATION:   Amenity Center Community Room 

Somerset at the Plantation  
10401 Dartington Drive 
Fort Myers, Florida, 33913 

 
3. TRANSMITTAL OF PROPOSED BUDGET TO LOCAL GENERAL PURPOSE 

GOVERNMENT.  The District Manager is hereby directed to submit a copy of the Proposed Budget 
to the City of Ft. Myers and Lee County at least 60 days prior to the hearing set above.  

 
4. POSTING OF PROPOSED BUDGET.  In accordance with Section 189.016, Florida 

Statutes, the District’s Secretary is further directed to post the approved Proposed Budget on the 
District’s website at least two days before the budget hearing date as set forth in Section 2, and 
shall remain on the website for at least 45 days.  

Page 20



 
5. PUBLICATION OF NOTICE.  Notice of this public hearing shall be published in the 

manner prescribed in Florida law.  
 
6. SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions of 

this Resolution shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions of this 
Resolution, or any part thereof. 

 
7. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 19th DAY OF May, 2025.  
 

ATTEST:      ARBORWOOD COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 
_____________________________          
Secretary / Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice Chair, Board of Supervisors 
 
Exhibit A: Proposed Budget 

 

Page 21



Arborwood
Community Development District

Proposed Budget
  Fiscal Year 2025/2026

 October 1, 2025 - September 30, 2026

Page 22



Page 23



DEBT PREPAYMENTS / MISCELLANEOUS PAYMENTS

GENERAL FUND ON ROLL ASSESSMENTS

GENERAL FUND DIRECT BILL ASSESSMENTS 

DEBT ON ROLL ASSESSMENTS

DEBT DIRECT BILL ASSESSMENTS

INSURANCE

GENERAL FUND INTEREST INCOME

GENERAL FUND OTHER REVENUES

PAYROLL TAX EXPENSE

SUPERVISOR FEES

ENGINEERING

MANAGEMENT

LEGAL

ASSESSMENT ROLL

ANNUAL AUDIT

ARBITRAGE REBATE FEE

Page 24



DRI TRAFFIC MONITORING

LEGAL ADVERTISING

MISCELLANEOUS

POSTAGE

OFFICE SUPPLIES

DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS

TRUSTEE FEES

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE FEE

AMORTIZATION SCHEDULES

WEBSITE

PROFESSIONAL FEE & PERMITS

TREELINE PRESEVE MAINT - EXOTICS

ENVIROMENTAL CONSULTING - PASSARELLA

PANTHER MITIGATION MAINT - EXOTICS

STREET LIGHTING - UTILITY & MAINT

CAPITAL OUTLAY - SMALL

COUNTY APPRAISER & TAX COLLECTOR FEE

Page 25



LAKE MAINT - EROSION MAINT- (SOMERSET ONLY)

FIELD INSPECTOR - (SOMERSET ONLY)

FLOWWAY MAINT

MISCELLANEOUS MAINTENANCE

MITIGATION MONITORING - (PARCEL C ONLY)

PRESERVE MAINT - (PARCEL C ONLY)

LAKE MAINT - AQUATIC CONTROL MAINT- (SOMERSET ONLY)

PRESERVE MAINT - (SOMERSET ONLY)

MISCELLANEOUS DEBT EXPENSE

DISCOUNTS FOR EARLY PAYMENTS

STORMWATER DRAINS INS & MAINT - (SOMERSET ONLY)

LAKE BANK INSPECTION - (SOMERSET ONLY)

LAKE BANK INSPECTION - (BRIDGETOWN ONLY)

STORMWATER DRAINS INS & MAINT - (BRIDGETOWN ONLY)

DEBT PAYMENT (2014)

DEBT PAYMENT (2018)

Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43


	Arborwood Community Development District - May 19, 2025 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	April 21, 2025 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Consider Approval of Quit Claim Deed
	Consider Approval of Lake Maintenance Proposals
	Consider Resolution No. 2025-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Proposed Budget
	Financials




